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The Director of the National Park Service is pleased to inform you that the following properties have
been entered in the National Register of Historie Places during the week beginning December 5 and
ending December 11, 1982, For further information call (202) 272-3504.

STATE, County, Vieinity, Property, Address, (date listed

ALABAMA, Greene County, Eutaw, Cockrell, Samuel W., House 'Antebellum Homes in Eutaw TR), 210
Wilson St. (12/06/82)

ALABAMA, Greene County, Eutaw vieinity, Coleman, John, House (Grassdale) {Antebellum Homes in
Eutaw TR), 1160 Mesopotamia St. (12/06/82)

ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Balsz House (Yuma MRA), 475 Second Ave. (12/07/82)

ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Brinley Avemue Historic District {Yuma MRA), 29-96 W. 2nd St., 198-
200 5. Mam, 301 S. 1st, and 102-298 Madison Aves. (12/97/82)

ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Brown Hosue (Yuma MRA), 268 S. First Ave. (12/07/82)

ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Brownsletter House (Yuma MRA), 627 Orange Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA Yuma County, Yuma, Caruthers House (Yuma MRA), 441 Second Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA Yuma Coun% Yuma, Connor House { Yuma MRA),TSI S. First Ave. (12/07/82)

ARI?ONA Yuma County, Yuma, Double Roof House {Yuma MRA), 553 Fourth Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Dressing Apartments ( Yuma MRA) 146 First Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Ewing, Frank, House (Yuma MRA), 700 Second Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma Countv, Yuma, Ewing, Ruth, Bouse ( Yum: MRA), 712 Second Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Gandolfo T‘heater(Yuma MRA), 200 S. First Ave. (12/07/82)

ARIZ ONA Yuma County, Yuma, Gi_ Tin, Alfred, House { Yurna MRA), 641 First Ave. (12/07/82)
;\RIZONA Yuma Countv, Yuma, Faurth Avenue Junior High School { Yuma MRA), 450 S. Fourth Ave.
(12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Fredley Apartments (Yuma MRA), 406 Second Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZON A, Yuma County, Yuma, Frediey House (Yuma MRA)Y, 408 Second Ave. (12/07/82)
ARI?ONA Yuma County, Yuma, Hodges, Peter B., House { Yuma MRA), 209 Orange Ave. {12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Hotel Del Ming (Yuma MRA), 300 Gila St. (12/07/82)

ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Jf ckson, W. B., House (Yuma MRA), 572 First Ave, (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma Countv, Yuma, Kent, Jennv, House (Yuma MRAY, 450 Third Ave. {12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma Countv, Yuma, Levy, Henry, House ( Yuma MRA) 802 Second Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Marable, George, House { Yuma MRA\ 482 Orange Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Mavhew, Carmelita, House ( Yuma MRA) 660 First Ave. (12/07/82)
;&RI?O/NA) Yuma County, Yuma, Mc .hodist Episcopal Church ( Yuma MRA), 256 S, rirst Ave.
12/07/82
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Methodist Parsonage (Yuma MRA), 248 S. First Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Mexican Consulate (Yuma MRAY, 199 W. Fourth St. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Ming, A. B., House ( Yuma MRA}, 468 Orange Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA Yuma County, Yuma, Norton House { Yuma MRA), 226 S. First Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Ortiz House {Yuma MRA), 206 S. First Ave. (12/27/82)

ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Pancrazi House { Yuma MRA), 432 S. Madison Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Pauley Apartments (Yuma MRA}, 498 W. First St. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Power Apartments (Yuma MRA), 20 W. Third St. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Riley, Clara Smith, House (Yuma MRA), 734 S.eond Ave. (12/07/82
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Roosevelt School (Yuma MRA), 201 Sixth St. {12/07/82)
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ARIZONA, Yuma Countv, Yuma, Russell-Williamson House (Yuma MRA), 652 Second Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma Countv, Yuma, St. Paul’s Episcopal Church {Yuma MRA), 637 Second Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Smith, J. Homer, House { Yuma MRA), 600 Fifth Ave. (12/07/82)
ARIZONA; Yuma Countv, Yuma, Stoffela Store/Railroad Exchange (Yuma MRA), 447 S. Main St.
12/07/82

ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Yuma Citv Hall (Yuma MRA), 181 W. First St. (12/07/82)

ARIZONA, Yuma County, Yuma, Yuma County Courthouse ( Yuma MRA), 168 S. Second Ave.

{12/07/8 23

CONNECTICUT, New London Countv, Norwich, Bean Hill Historie Distriet, Huntington and Vergason
Aves., Svlvis Lane and W. Town St. (12/08/82)

GEORGIA, Coffee Countv, Douglas, Union Banking Company Building, 102 Peterson Ave. (12/10/82)

ILLINOIS, Douglas County, Filson vicinit,v,y MeCarty, John, Round Barn {Round Barns in lllinois TR},
NW of Filson (12/07/82)
ILLINOIS, Fayette County, Vandalia vicinitv, Forehand, Clarence, Round Barn (Round Barrs in Dlinois

TR), W of Vandalia off IL 185 (12/07/82)

ILLINOIS, Will County, Romeoville vieinity, George, Ron, Round Barn {(Round Barns in Nlinois TR), NE
of Romeov Tle off US 56 (12/07/82)

INDIANA, Bartholomew County, Columbus, Co:umbus Historie Distriet, Roughly bounded by the
Pennsvlvania RR tracks, Chestnut, 34th, Washington, and Franklin Sts. (12/10/82)

IOWA, Benton County, Vinton, Ray, Frank G., House & Carriage House, 912 First Ave. (12/10/82)
IOWA, Davis County, Bloomfield, Wilson, Asa, House, 207 S. Washington (12/10/82)

IOWA, Johnson County, lowa City, Chicago, Rock Island and Pacific Railroad Passenger Station, 115
Wr!g'ht St. 112710/8%2Y
IOWA, Marion County, Pella, Scholte, Dominie Henry P., House, 739 Washington St. (12/10/82)
IOWA, Museatine County, Musecatine, Fuller, W. Joseph, House, 1001 Mulbberry Ave. (12/10/82)

LOUISIAN A, St. Tammany . ..rish, Covington, Divisicn of St. John Historie Distriet, US 190 and LA 21
(12/06/82)

MARYLAND, Kent Countv, Chestertown, Chestertown Railroad Station, Cross St. {12/08/82)

MASSACHUSETTS, Suffolk Countv, Revere, Ronan, Marv, T., School, 154 Bradstreet Ave. (12/10/82)

MICHIGAN, Monroe Count: , Monroe, River Raisin Battlefield Site (20 MR227), Bounded by River
Raisin, Detroit Ave., Mason Run, and S at Noble Ave. (12/10/82

?/IICHIGAN, Wavne Countv, Dearborn, Dearborn Inn and Colonial Homes, 20301 Oskwood Blvd.
12/10/82)

MICHIGAN, Wayne County, Netroit, Cass Avenue Methodist Episecopal Chureh, 3901 Cass Ave.
(12/10/82)
MICHIGAN, Wavne Countv, Detroit, St. Josaphat's Roman Catholie Church Complex, 715 E. Canfield
Ave. (1 2/‘08/82)

MINNESOTA, Murray Countyv, Fulda, First National Bank (Murray County MRA), 115 N. St. Paul Ave.
(12/07/8)

}WB\/I&T?SO‘TA Murray County, Slayton, Dinehart-Holt House {Murray Couniy MRA), 2812 Linden Ave.
12/07/82




MONTAN A, Beaverhead County, Dillon vieinity, Bireh Creek CCC Camp, N of Dillon on US FS Rd. 98
. 112/07/82) ,
MONTANA, Park County, Livingston vicinity, Sixtv-Three Ranch, (1 2/07/82) '

NEW MEZXICO, Los Alamos County White Rock, Pajarito Springs Site, (12/06/82)
NEW MEXICO, Los Alamos Countv, Los Alamos, Guaje Site, {12/07/82)

NEW MEXICO, Rio Arriba Countv, Abiquiu, Abiquin Mesa Grid Gardens, (12/07/82)
NEW MEXICO, Santa Fe County, White Rock, Navawi, (12/08/82

OHIO, Lorain County, Lorain, US Post Office, Ninth St. and Broadway Ave. (12/09/82)

OKLAHOMA, Comanche County, Lawton, Mahoney-Clark House, 513~515 W. Gore Ave.(12/08/82)

OREGON, Linn Countv, Abanyv, Albany Downtown Commereial Historic District, Roughly bounded by
Willamette River, Montzomery, Washington, and 5th Sts. (12/09/82)

PENNSYLVANIA, Allegheny County, Thornburg, Thornburg Historic Distriet, Off PA 60 (12/10/82)
PENNSYLVANIA, Dauphin County, Harrisburg, Harrisburg Technical High School, 423 Walnut St.
(12/07/82)

TENNESSEE, Shelby County, Memphis, Tennessee Trust Building, 81 Madison Ave. (12/09/82)

VERMONT, Chittenden County, Burlington, Champlain School, 809 Pine St. (12/10/82)
VERMONT, Chittenden Coun%’,, Bt)xrh‘ngtan, Wells-Jackson Carriage House Complex, 192-194 Jackson
aple St. 92

Court and 3
VERMONT, Chittenden County, Charlotte, Tavern on Mutton Hill, Church Hill Rd. (12/10/82)
VERMONT, Windsor GCounty, Bethel, Locust Creek House Gomplex, VT 12 (12/10/82)

WYOMING, Park County, Mammoth Hot Springs vieinity, Lamar Buffalo Ranch (Yellowstone National
Park MRA), E of Mammoth Hot Springs on Northeast Entrance Rd. (12/07/82)

WYOMING, Teton County, Yellowstone National Park, Old Faithful Historie District (Yellowstone
National Park MRA’, Both sides of Grand Luop Rd. at OId Faithful Geyser (12/07/82)

The following properties were also entered in the National Register but were excluded from a previous
notice:

IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris vieinity, Cole House {Paris MRA), SW of Paris (11/18/82)
}DAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris vicinity, Collings, James, Jr., House (Paris MRA), S of Paris on US 89
11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris vieinity, Sheidigger, John, House and Qutbuildings (Paris MRA), S of
Paris on US 89 (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris vieinity, Wallentine Farmstead (Papris MRA), NW of Paris (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris vieinity, Weilermann, Gus, House (Paris MRA), SW of Paris (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Allred, Ezra, Bungalow (Paris MRA), 93 Center St. (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Allred, Ezra, Cottage (Paris MRA), 159 Main St. (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Ashlev, Dr. George, House (Paris MRA), 40 W. 2nd North (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Ashley, George, Sr., House (Paris MRA), W. 2nd North (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Bear Lake Market (Paris MRA), N, Main St.(11/18/82)
-~ }11'.)11311-180/,8 g)ear L.ake County, Paris, Beck Barns and Aufomobile Storagc (Paris MRA), Center St.
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Bishop West Barn (Paris MRA}, W. 2nd St. (11/18/82)
~~»IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Browning Bloek (Paris MRA), Main and Center Sts. {11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Budze Cottage (Paris MRAJ, Center St.(11/18/82)




= {11/18/877

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Budge, Alfred, House (Paris MRA), N. 1st W. at W. 1st North
{11/18/82}

IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Budge, Julia, House (Pa1is MRA), 57 W. 1st North (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Cook, Joseph, House (Pans MRA\ 63 W. 2nd South (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Davis, B. F., House (Paris MRA), 10 W. 2nd North (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Grunder Cabin and Outbuildings (Pans MRA), E. 1st North (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Hoff man Barn (Paris MRA), N. 2nd East (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Hoge, Walter, House (Paris MRAW Center and N. 1st East (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Hotel Paris (Paris MRA), 7 Main St (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Hulme, Amos, Barn (Parls MRA), N. 1st Fast (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Innes, Thomas, House (Paris MRA) 42 W. 1st St. South (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Jaussi Bungalow (Paris MRA), 170 E. 2nd North (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Keller House and Derick ?Parls MRA), E. 1st North (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, LDS Seminary (Paris MRA), Tabernacle Block (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, TDS Stake Office Building (Parls MRA), S. Main St. (11/18/82)
}DAHO B}ear Lake Countv, Paris, Law, Oren, House and Outbuildings (Parls MRA), 592 Main St.
11/18/82

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Lewis Barn (Paris MRA), W. 2nd North (11/18/82)

IDAH(}, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Linvall, J. L., House and Outbuilding (Paris MRA), E. 2nd South
(11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Linvall, Robb, House (Paris MRA), Paris Canyon Rd.{(11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Low, Morris, Bungalow (Paris MRA), 48 W. Center St. (11/18/82)
}DAHO Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Old LDS Tithing Office/Paris Post Building (Paris MRA), Main St.
11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Paris Cemetery (Paris MRA), Off US 89 (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear L.ake Countv, Paris, Paris Lumber Company Building (Paris MRA), Main St. (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Paris Photo Studio (Paris MRA), W. Center St (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Paris Pubhc Sehool (Paris MRA) Main and 1st Sts. North (11/18/82)
}D?HC} B‘ear Lake Countv, Paris, Pendrey Drug Store Building (Parls MRA), Main and Center Sts.
11/18/82
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Poulsen, Jim, House (Paris MRA), 146 E. 1st North (11/18/82)
(IDA;HO/, B}ear Lake Countv, Paris, Price, Dan, House (Paris MRA), W. 1st North and N. 1st West
11/18/82

IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Price, Joe, House (Paris MRA), W. 1st North (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Price, Robert, House (Paris MRA) N. 1st W, at W. 1st North

(11/1 8/82Y

IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Rich, Landon, House (Paris MRA), W. 1st South (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Rich, William L., House (Paris MRA\ 34 W. 2nd South (11/18/82)
IDAHO Tear Lake County, Paris, Rich-Grandy Cabin (Paris MRAS E. an South (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Rogers, ¥ ranklin, BungalowTPans MRA), 55 E. Center St. (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Rogers, Frederick, House (Paris MRA), W. 2nd North (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Shepherd Hardware (Paris MRA), Main St. (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Shepherd, Earl, Bungzalow {Paris MRA) 104 Center St.{11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Parls, Shepherd, J. R., House (Paris MRA), 58 W. Center St. (11/18/82)
}D?H(} B‘ear Lake County, Paris, Shepherd, Les and Hazel, Bungalow (Parls MRA), 185 Main St.
11/18/82
IDAHO, Bear Leke County, Paris, Shepherd, Ted, Cottage (Paris MRA), N. 1st West (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Sleight, Thomas, Cabin (Paris MRA), Main St. (11/18/82)

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Smedley, Thomas, House (Paris MRA), E. 1st St. N. (11/18/82)

gDeHe, B‘ear Lake County, Paris, Spencer, George, House {?aris MRA), Center St. and N. 1st East
11/18/82

IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Stoker, Henry, House and Outbuildings (Paris MRA), 192 S. 2nd East

IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Sutton, John, House (Paris MRA), 140 Main St.(11/18/82)




IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Taylor, Arthur. House {Paris MRA), W, 2nd North (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Telephone Company Bungalow (Parls MRA), Center St. (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Tueller, Jacob, Jr,, House (Paris MRAS 75 S 1st East (11/18/82)
IDAHO, Bear Lake County, Paris, Tueller, John, Sr., House (Paris MRA), 165 E. 1st South (11/18/82)
}DAHO Bear Lake Countv, Paris, Wives of Charles C. Rich Historie DlStl'lct (Paris MRA), S. 15t West
11/18/82)

- INDIAN A, Marshall County, Culver vicinity, Woodbank, 2738 East Shore Lane, Lake Maxinkuckee
(12/02/82)

MICHIGAN, Genesee County, Dawson, House at 1339 Cummings Road (Genesee County MRA), 1339
Cummings Rd, (11/26/82)
MICHIGAN, Genesee County, Fenton, Dibbleville-Fentonville Historic District (Genesee County MRA),
Roughly bounded bv Shiawassee, Riggs, Holly and George Sts. (11/26/82)

NEW HAMPSHIRE, Strafford County, Dover, Wyatt, Samuel, House, 7 Church St. (12/02/82)

NEW JERSEY, Hudson County, Jersey City, Hamilton Park Historie District Extension (Boundary
increase), Jersey Ave. and 10th St. (12/02/82)
NEW JERSEY, Warren County, Phillipsburg vieinity, Hixson-Skinner Mill Complex, Still Valley Rd.
(12/02/82}

P‘EW YORK, Dutehess Countv, Poughkeepsie, Freer House (Poughkeepsie MRA), 70 Wilbur Blvd.
11/26/82)

OHIO, Franklin Countv, Columbus, Jefferson Avenue Historic sttnct, Roughly bounded by I-71, E.
Broad, 11th, and Long Sts, (12/02/82}

OHIO, Montgomery Cour.tv, Davton, Commercial Building, 44 S. Ludlow St. (12/02/82)

C “LAHOMA, Oklahoma Countv, Oklahoma City, Farmers Public Market, 311 S. Klein St. (12/02/82)

vultiple Resource Areas are identified by MRA
Thematic Resources are identified by TR



STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS TWX 710-225-8100

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602

DEPARTMENTS & DIVISIONS OF:
Administration 828-3211
Administrative Services 828-3231
Economic Development 8§28-3221
Historic Preservation 828-3226
Housing & Community Affairs §28-3217
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Film Bureau

December 27, 1982 Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

Larkin, Tarrant & Hoehl Partmership
1185 Shelburne Road
Burlington, Vermont 05401

RE: Champlain School
Dear Sir:
We are pleased to inform you that the Champlain School has

been officially entered on the National Register of Historic
Places.

If you desire further information regarding this nomination,
please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

Vit B

William B. Pinney
Director/Deputy State
Historic Preservation Officer

WBP/plh




STATE OF VERMONT

“3 AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS TWX 710-225-8100

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602

DEPARTMENTS & DIVISIONS OF:
Administration 828-3211
Administrative Services 828-3231
Economic Development 828-3221
Historic Preservation 828-3226
Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217
Vermont Travel Division §28-3236
Film Bureau

Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241
December 27, 1982

Bernard Sanders, Mayor
City of Burlington
Burlington, Vermont 05402

RE: Champlain School
(809 Pine Street, Burlington)

Dear Mayor Sanders:
We are pleased to inform you that the Champlain School has

been officially entered on the National Register of Historic
Places.

If you desire further information regarding this nomination,
please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

V ’
William B. Pinney
Director/Deputy State .

Historic Preservation Officer
WBP/plh

cc: Arthur R. Hogan, Jr., Executive Director,
Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission
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STATE OF YERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS TWX 710-225-8100

e MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602

DEPARTMENTS & DIVISIONS OF:

Administration 828-3211

Administrative Services 828-3231

Economic Development 828-3221

Historic Preservation 828-3226

Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217
1982 Vermont Travel Division 828-3236

Film Bureau

Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

November 1,

Carol Shull, Chief of Registration
National Register of Historic Places
National Park Service

Department of the Interior
Washington, DC 20240

Dear Ms. Shull:

Enclosed please find the National Register nomination forms for
the following:

The Tavern on Mutton Hill
Charlotte, Chittenden County, Vermont

Locust Creek House Complex
Bethel, Windsor County, Vermont

Champlain School
Burlington, Chittenden County, Vermont

Wells-Jackson Carriage House Complex
Burlington, Chittenden County, Vermont

These properties are being submitted under the Historic Preservation
Act of 1966, as amended in 1980, for inclusion in the National Register
of Historic Places.

No comments regarding these nominations were received.
Sincerely,
DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

Ui O

o~ William B. Pinney
’ Director/Deputy State Hi¥storic
Preservation Officer

WBP/ jmf
Enclosures




STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS TWX 710-225-8100

DT MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602

DEPARTMENTS & DIVISIONS OF:
Administration 828-3211
Administrative Services 8§28-3231
Economic Development 828-3221
Historic Preservation 528-3226
Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217
Vermont Travel Division §28-3236
Film Burcau

November 1 . 1982 Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

Larkin, Tarrant and Hoehl Partnership
1185 Shelburne Road
Burlington, Vermont (5401

' Re: Champlain School
Burlington, Vermont

Dear Sirs:

We are pleased to inform you that the Champlain School has been
submitted to the National Park Service for consideration

for entry in the National Register of Historic Places. Notification
of acceptance of the property will follow.

Please feel free to contact us if any further information is
desired.

Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

(il &

William B. Pinney
Director/Deputy State Hi
Preservation Officer

WBP/ jmf




STATE OF VERMONT

TR
‘ AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS TWX 710-225-8100

— MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602

DEPARTMENTS & DIVISIONS OF:
Administration 828-3211
Administrative Services 828-3231
Economic Development 828-3221
Historic Preservation 828-3226
Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Film Bureau

November 1. 1982 Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241
3

Bernard Sanders, Mayor
City of Burlington
Burlington, Vermont 05402

Re: Champlain School, 809 Pine Street,
Burlington, Vermont

Dear Mayor Sanders:

We are pleased to inform you that the Champlain School has been
submitted to the National Park Service for consideration for
entry in the National Register of Historiec Places. Notification
of acceptance of the property will follow.

Please feel free to contact us if any further information is
desired.

Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

William B. Pinney
Director/Deputy State Historic
Preservation Qfficer

WBP/ jmf

cc: Arthur R, Hogan, Jr., Executive Director
Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission




NPS Form 10-800 OMB No.1024-0018
(382 Exp. 10-31-84

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service For NPS use only
National Register of Historic Places received
Inventory—Nomination Form date entered

See instructions in How to Complete National Register Forms
Type all entries—complete applicable sections

1. Name

historic Champlain School

and/or common sSame

2. Location

street & number 8§09 Pine Street /2 not for publication
city, town Burlington N/A vicinity of
state Vermont code 20 county Chittenden code 007
a L ] -

3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district public —X_ occupied —_ agriculture —___ museum
X__ building(s) _X_.. private —— unoccupied —— commercial — park
— structure e bOth _ X work in progress — educational ——__private residence
—_ site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment —_religious
— object —in process _X yes: restricted —__government __ scientific

being considered —.. yes: unrestricted _ industrial — transportation

N/E _...no ____ military X __ other: Apartments

4. Owner of Property

name Larkin, Tarrant and Hoehl Partnership

street & number 1185 Shelburne Road

city, town  Burlington ' . N/A vicinity of state  vermont

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. City of Burl ington s Office of the Clty' Clerk

street & number Room 20, City Hall

city, town Burlington state Vermont

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title Historic Sites and Structures Survey has this property been determined eligible? ____yes _YX no

date 1981 — federal _X state .____ county ____local

depository for survey records Vermont Division for Historic Preservation

city, town Montpel .ieJi.”” " - state Vermont




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one
. —X excellent ___ deteriorated .___ unaltered _X_ original site
___good ____ruins _X altered ___moved date

_ tair ___ unexpased

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Champlain School sits atop a slight rise of land on the west side of Pine Street,
in the City of Burlington's South End, overlooking Lake Champlain and the Adirondack
Mountains of New York State to the west. Designed in a vernacular adaptation of the
Richardsonian Romanesque style, the building is a large, rectangular, two story, red
brick structure with a raised basement story, a slate covered hip roof, and round
arched fenestration. Closed as a school in 1967, the building's exterior appearance
and interior construction remain unchanged.

Below grade, the building's foundation 1s of rubble, fieldstone construction. Above
grade, the exterior walls are of brick, lead bearing masonry construction Iaid in a
commnen bond with decorative brick and Longmeadow sandstone detailing. The slate
covered hip roof is constructed with principal rafter trusses, purlins, and
intermediate rafters. Interior walls are also of brick, load besaring construction.
The floors are carried on steel girders with heavy timber joists.

Oriented to the cardinal points, the main entrance to the building is located on the
long, east elevation. Originally, the interior plan consisted of one large
rectangular classroom in each corner with a narrow service hall apd storage room
between on the short, north and south elevations. A large, two story stair hall
with a pair of flanking stairs dominated the center of the building on the east
elevation. A smaller, rectangular classroom was located behind in the center of the
west elevation.

Originally, the interior finishes included plaster walls and ceilings, and Southern
Yellow Pine woodwork and floors. The interior is presently (1982) undergoing
conversion into apartments.

The exterior of the building measures 94 by 66 feet; or sixteen bays across the front,
east elevation, thirteen bays across the rear, west elevation, and ten bays across
the end, north and south elevations. The center eight bays of the front, and the
center three bays of the rear, élevations project slightly from the rectangular block
of the building. The front projection breaks the line of the eave of the hip rocf,
but the rear projection does not.

The exterior wall surfaces are divided horizontally into two distinct treatments, a
"rusticated" raised basement story below visually supporting a two story~high blind
arcade above of wall piers and round arches. The "rusticated” basement consists of
six continuous bands of brick, each band gix courses in height and serarated from
the others by a single recessed course. The bottom four bands are broken at each
bay by a window. The fifth band forms a continuous window lintel for the basement
windows, the common bond pattern being interrupted at each bay by a flat arch with
radiating voussoirs and raked ends. The "rustication" is capped by a three course
high corbelled brick water table which supports a continucus, first story window
sill of Longmeadow sandstone. .

{continued on Continuation Sheet 7-1)




NPS Form 10-800-a OMB No. 1024-0018
3-82} Exp. 10-31-84

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

“" National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet item number 7

From the sandstone sill spring the two story high round arched wall panels of the
blind arcade, each arch corresponding to the width of one bay. The arcade, like the
"rusticated” basement, is continuous arcund the perimeter of the building, except
across the projecting front entrance pavilion where it is confined, in a slightly
different treatment, to the second story windows. Fach arched wall panel contains

a flat arched first story window and a round arched second story window, serarated
by a plain wall spandrel. The bottom edge of each spandrel is supported by a flat
arch of radiating voussoirs which forms the first story window lintel. The top of
each spandrel supports an individual sill of sandstone for the second story window.

The arches spring from a single course impost band of burnt brick which runs as a
visually continuous line across the top of each pier of the arcade. Where the piers
are wider, at the corner and center bays, the voussoirs of the arches continue as a
decorative soldier course above the impost band. A continuous double course,
corbelled archivolt of burnt brick defines the top edge of the voussolirs and soldiers.

Above the line of the archivolt and beneath the eaves of the roof, a frieze band is
decoratively laid out in a lattice pattern of burnt and unburnt headers. The eaves
project approximately two and one-half feet beyond the wall of the building and are
detailed with exposed rafter tails rounded at the ends.

The slate covered hip roof is punctuated by a hip roofed dormer in the center of the
north and south elevations, and by five massively tall, but narrowly rectangular
chimney stacks. Four of the stacks are located on the left side of each of the four
slopes of the hip roof with the narrow edge facing out. The fifth stack is set just
back of the ridge on the rear, west slope.

Across the front entrance pavilion, the two story high blind arcade is interrupted
by a different wall treatment. Reached by a short flight of eight granite steps, a
center entrance, four bays in width, interrupts the continuous banding of the
"rusticated” basement story and projects up into the first story in the form of a
semi-circular arch. Springing from the continuous sandstone sill band of the first
story windows, the arch is constructed from six courses of headers with a triple
course, corbelled archivolt. The arch provides access to an outdoor "vestibule”
which is paneled in vertical beaded boards and which contains the main entranceway.
The doorway consists of a pair of doors with single lights above two molded,
horizontal panels. Above the doors, a four section, semi-circular fanlight
illuminates the interior stair hall.

Immediately above the entrance archway, a small, brick banded, rectangular sandstone
panel is inscribed with the dates, 1609-1909. A larger, brick banded panel, alsoc of
sandstone, located between the date stone and the second story window sills, is

~ inscribed with the name, Champlain School.

On the first story, the entrance archway is flanked by a pair of flat arched windows.
On the second story, eight round arched windows, each with an individual sandstone

(continued on Continuation Sheet 7-2)
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sill, continue the arcade motif on either side across the top of the pavilion and
support the lattice patterned frieze.

On the rear pavilion, a steel fire escape doglegs across the three bay width of the
pavilion from the ground to the third story windows. A later addition of
undocumented date, the fire escape is protected by a cantilevered shed roof which
is supported by four steel trusses.

All of the windows in the building are two-over-two, double hung sash, but, on the
first and second stories, they are two different sizes. In the four ocutside bays on
the right side of each elevation, the windows on the first and second stories are
full height. In the four ocutside bays on the left side of each elevation, the
w1ndows are only half-height, positioned in the upper half of the window "opening”.
The difference in height, between the full height window sill and the extra
sandstone sill of the half-height windows, is filled in with a paneled spandrel.
(The reason for this height difference was to allow for an additional, or third,
blackboard in the outside, corner classrooms. Instead of just eliminating the
windows altogether, they were retained in a shorter size in order to allow for
additional natural 1Ijght.)




8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justity below

____prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion

__1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic . conservation  law —_ science

— 15001599 ____ agriculture —___economics — literature — sculpture

___1600-1699 X architecture ———education ___ military ____ social/

—1700-1799 ___ art - engineering . music humanitarian

—1800-1899 ___ commerce — exploration/settiement ___ philosophy — theater

A 1900- ____ communications ___. industry —— politics/government  _ transportation
____ invention — other (specify)

Specific dates 1909 " Builder/Architect Frank Lyman Austin

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The Champlain School is significant for four reasons: as an cutstanding example of
vernacular Richardsonian Romanesque style architecture; as the first, large scale,
public commission by architect Frank Lyman Austin; as an example of innovative
schoclhouse design; and as a milestone in local social and educational equality.

Frank Lyman Austin, the school's architect, was one of Burlington's most prominent
early Twentieth Century architects. The Champlain School, his first large scale
public commission, is, in his harmonicus blending and juxtaposition of intricate
J,detailing, in his attention to functional practicality, and in his Innovative use
of the most modern sanitary and safety features, a remarkable expression of
Austin's creative genius and concern for detail. A member of the Boston Chapter of
the American Institute of Architects and the Vermont Society of Engineers, Austin
was the first, and for several years, only, architect to be registered in the
Burlington City Directory exclusively as an architect. A specialist in public
buildings - schools, libraries, churches, banks, fire stations, etc., his most
noteworthy designs include the gymnasium and Burlington Junior High School additions
(1925) to the 1899 Edmunds High School, the Burlington Central Fire Station (1926),
the Burlington Municipal Auditorium (1927), the Burlington State Armory Building
(1929), the Burlington Y.M.C.A. (1934), and the Taft School (1538), as well as
several private residences throughout the city.

Born on September 30, 1874, Frank Lyman Austin was descended from a prominent

family of Burlington builders and architectural designers. His grandfather, Lyman
Austin, was first listed as a carpenter in the 1865 edition of the Burlington City
Directory. FEmployed, along with twe of his sons, by a local builder, Elmore

Johnson, Lyman Austin set up his own building company, in partnership with his

three sons, Zachary Taylor, Curtis and Alfred, in 1873. Zachary Taylor Austin

took over the business from his father in 1881, and in 1886 dissolved the partnership
with his two brothers to continue on his own .

By 1890, Zachary Taylor Austin was an extremely successful contractor and changed
his listing in the Burlington City Directory from "Builder" to "Builder and
Architect”. This change probably indicates an active role in designing the
buildings he constructed, but also suggests an awareness of the growing importance
of the architectural profession,‘an awareness underscored by his son Frank Lyman
Austin’s being trained as an architect, and then being registered as same in the
1904 edition of the Burlington City Directory.

Following his father's death in 1910, Frank Lyman Austin dissolved the construction
side of his father's business but continued as an architect. Where exactly he

received his architectural training is not documented. His son, Lyman Dinsmore

{continued on Continuation Sheet 8-1)
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Austin, was also trained in the architectural profession and joined as a partner in
his father's business in 1939. Fcllowing Frank Lyman Austin's death on January 1,
1942, his son left Burlington and almost eighty years of contribution to the design
and construction of Burlington's built environment by the Austin family came to

an end.

As an example of good architectural design integrated with the necessities of
functional practicality, sanitary amenities, and structural safety, the Champlain
School, of all of the public schools built in Burlington during the twenty-five year
period immediately prior to and after the turn of the Twentieth Century, was the
most innovative and advanced. Almost all of the features incorporated into the
building's design were unique to this school. While many of the features might seem
qommonplace today, in 1909 they were revolutionary, to say the least.

In an attempt to make the building as "fireproof" as possible, besides the required
hydrants on each floor, all of the interior walls and partitions were constructed
of brick, just like the exterior. The floors were carried on steel girders with
heavy timber joists. There were three interior stairways with steel stairs, and
all of the interior woodwork and floors were constructed of slow burning, Southern
Yellow Pine.

The interior layout of the building was equally modern for a turn of the century
school, and, in its farsightedness, included facilities not normally Incorporated
into school architecture. Boys and girls toilets, located in the basement, were
equipped with ventilated urinals and self~sanitizing closets. Cupless drinking
fountains were located in each corridor. There were also two large industrial arts
workshops in the basement, teachers' rooms with. private toilets on each floor, a
well stocked library, and two classrooms on the second floor which could be opened
up into one large assembly hall by moving a rolling partition.

Each classroom had a full length slate blackboard on three of the four walls.
Teachers' desks were raised at the long end of the classroom but, because the
students’ desks were moveable, the arrangement of the room could be oriented
toward any of the three blackboards.

Besides fireproof construction, perhaps the single most important design innovation
was the use of natural light. Each classroom was arranged so that the primary
source of natural light was a row of windows located on the students’ left. In the
outside corner classrooms, however, a secondary source of natural light came over
the students' right shoulder through a row of shorter windows located above the
blackboard at the back of the classroom. The intent was to provide the best
orientation for natural illumination, thereby avoiding the excessive, and expensive,
use of electric lighting.

The Champlain School is significant alsc as an expression of social consciousness
in an era when providing social, cultural, and educational opportunities and

(continued on Continuation Sheet 8-2)
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facilities for the poorer laboring members of society was done out of a, sense of
unavoidablbe necesgity, not social obligation. Ward Six, the City of Burlington's
South End, was one of the last areas of the city to be settled and developed, and,
consequently, was the last ward to get a public school building. After much delay,
the opening of the gchool in 1910, an opening which had to be delayed one year
because the mortar in the building had not cured properly, was a milestcone in social
consciousness. Until the completion of the new school, rooms for classes were rented
in private homes and stores. Overcrowding became such an acute problem that most
grades had to be held twice each day in half-day sessions. At a cost of $36,000.00,
the Champlain School was one of the most expensive school facilities built in the
city. However, when completed, it raised the quality of education in that previcusly
ignored ward to a level egqual to that of the public schools located throughout the
qgtg's older, "northern" wards.

The City of Burlington, a thriving waterfront community, throughout its history has
continued to expand and outgrow the surrounding landscape available tc it for
expansion. This was no different at the turn of the Twentieth Century than it is
today. As available land for expansion became scarce, the swamp and farmlands
immediately to the south of the city proper, along Pine Street between the Shelburne
Road and Lake Champlain, were drained, filled in, and developed. Along with the
factories went workers housing, and along with an increase in population went a

need for an educational facility.

In 1880, Charles W. Scarff, a Nebraska real estate promoter, and his partner, A.C.
Ferguson, purchased a 100 acre tract of land on Lake Champlain immediately west

of the Shelburne Road between present day Flynn and Home Avenues, to the north and
south respectively. Laid out in eighteen rectangular blocks for industrial
development and workers' housing, the development, known as the Scarff Addition, was
one of Burlington's first large scale, planned, industrial-residential communities.
To connect it directly to the city's already established waterfront, Pine Street

was extended further south to meet up with its northern edge.

Then, in 1894, the Queen City Cotton Company constructed a new mill overlooking
Lake Champlain just off of Pine Street, between the city's established waterfront
and the Scarff Addition. Henry Conger, who had sold the land for the mill, started
a new housing development for the mill's labor force just to the south of the mill,
overlooking the lake. Known as Lakeside Park, it was taken over in 1899 by the
mill company when the mill was enlarged. (Refer to the Lakeside Historic District,
entered in the National Register of Historic Places on April 12, 1982.)

The area, designated as Ward Six and guickly referred to as the South End, became the
new industrial center of Burlington. Its appeal and success were in large part

~ insured by its location next to the lakefront, and by the fact that the tracks of the
Rutland Railroad ran through it along the lake shore. The industrial development
was extremely diversified, but the labor force, while mixed, was primarily French
Canadian.

(continued on Continuation Sheet 8-3)
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The rapid increase of working class people into the Scarff Addition and Lakeside
Park put tremendous pressure on the city for a new school facility in the South End.
However, it took the city almost three years, from 1906 to 1909, to get the project
off the ground. One of the chief stumbling blocks was a requirement imposed on the
Burlington School Board by the City Council that the Board prove the necessity for
a new school. Once proven, cost became another factor, but did not, ultimately,
prevent the school from being built.

Closed as a school facility in 1967, the Champlain School has stood vacant, or only
marginally utilized, for fourteen of the past fifteen years. In July of 1981, the
building was purchased from the Burlington School Department by the present owners
and is undergoing conversion into apartments.
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Verbal boundary description and justification (continued):

and protect the historic structure and is the original school lot.
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CHAMPLAIN SCHOOL

Burlington, Vermont

CREDIT: Courtney Fisher

DATE: April 1982

NEGATIVE: VT Div. for Hist. Preservation

DESCRIPTION: View looking NORTHWEST from
Pine Street

PHOTOGRAPH: #1
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CHAMPLAIN SCHOOL

Burlington, Vermont

CREDIT: C(ourtney Fisher

DATE: April 1982

NEGATIVE: VT Div. for Hist. Preservation

DESCRIPTION: Detail view showing roof
cornice on southeast corner of building

PHOTOGRAPH: #2
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CHAMPLAIN SCHOOL

Burlington, Vermont

CREDIT: Courtney Fisher

DATE: April 1982

NEGATIVE: VT Div. for Hist. Preservation

DESCRIPTION: Detalil view showing name and
date plaques on front entrance pavilion
above entrance archway

PHOTOGRAPH: #3




